
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 
OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time, and location 
given below. 


 


Meeting of the:  
Date/Time:  
Location: 
 
 Members: 
 


 


 City Personnel: 


Personnel Committee of the City of Stoughton 
Monday, August 7, 2023 @ 6:00 pm 
Stoughton Utilities - Ed Malinowski Boardroom 
600 S 4th Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
Lisa Reeves (Chair), Brett Schumacher, Tom Majewski, Jonathan Schroerlucke 
Mayor Timothy Swadley (ex-officio member) 


Director Gillingham 
 


 


1 Call to Order 
 


2 Approval of the Monday, June 5, 2023 Personnel Meeting minutes 
 


3 Communications 
 


4 Discussion and possible action regarding Facilities Maintenance Specialist  
                position description 


 


5 Discussion and possible action regarding Finance position description  
 


6 Discussion and possible action regarding Circulation Supervisor position to  
 move temporarily from 30 hours to up to 40 hours for the remainder of 2023 


 


7 **Discussion and possible action regarding Emergency Services additional 
funding 


 


8 Discussion and possible action regarding clarification of request made by the  
                                       committee during closed session at June 5, 2023 meeting 


 


9 Clarification of Personnel Committee vs Ethics Board 
 


10 Future Agenda Items 
• Drug/Alcohol Policy Update – Post-accident/incident 
• Drug screens for new employees  
• Leadership Backup Plan Outline 
• Accrued Sick Leave for Retiring Employees – Sworn Police and City Staff 
• Disciplinary Action & Compensation 
• Uniforms Policy 
• Updates to Work Rules 


 


11  Adjournment 
 
 


** May move to closed session per State Statute 19.85(1)(c) considering employment, promotion, 
compensation, or performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental 
body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility. 


 


 
Any person wishing to attend the meeting, whom because of a disability, requires special accommodation, 
should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (608) 873-6692 at least 24 hours before the scheduled meeting time 
so appropriate arrangements can be made. In addition, any person wishing to speak or have their comments 
heard but does not have access to the internet should also contact the City Clerk’s Office at the number 
above at least 24 hours before the scheduled meeting so appropriate arrangements can be made. 
 


 
NOTE: AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL.   








 
 
 
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, June 5, 2023 @ 6:00 pm 
Ed Malinowski Boardroom 
 
Present: Lisa Reeves (Chair), Brett Schumacher (Vice-Chair), Tom Majewski, Mayor Swadley (ex-
officio member), Director Gillingham 
Missing Unexcused: Jonathan Schroerlucke 
Also attending: Tyler Denig (excused himself when the meeting went into a closed session.) 
   
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  


Chair Reeves called the meeting to order at 6:01 pm.  
 
2. Approval of the minutes from the Wednesday, May 3, 2023 Personnel Meeting minutes 


Motion to approve, Majewski, Schumacher second, Approved 3-0 
 
3.  Communications/Updates  


Director Gillingham gave the Committee members updates on: 
• Hiring Tim Reel to replace Grady as Utilities Asset & Facilities Supervisor. 
• Police Officer PFC Interviews tomorrow. 
• CSO John Basco hired and additional CSO’s to be hired and share hours. 
• New Parks Machine Operator Tye Michiels hired. 
• Laura Trotter hired as Senior Center Program & Volunteer Coordinator. 
• Marcia Standard was hired as Administrative Assistant. 
• Hired two Media Techs – Max and Stephen. 
• Dispatcher Tracie Bauer gave notice, will be recruiting for another Dispatcher. 
• Kristin Ott retired. 
• 19 new Recreation employees onboarded. 10 new and 9 returning. 
• Tobie hired as Softball Supervisor. 
• Brian Erickson retiring July 28th. Recruiting for position replacement. 
• Martin Briggs retiring December 31st. 
• Public Employee Appreciation Day HR coordinated – Mayor made rounds to all 


departments with cookies. 
• K9 comp adjusted for PJ Johnson. 


 
Moved to closed at 6:13 pm for personnel update regarding a personnel issue.  
Chair Reeves read the closed session statement: 


** May move to closed session per State Statute 19.85(1)(c) considering employment, promotion, 
compensation, or performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental 
body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility. 


Director Gillingham was tasked by Majewski with obtaining/writing a procedure for when a Director 
is not following through/the Director is not doing their job. 
Moved to open session 6:45 pm 
Motion to approve, Majewski, Schumacher second, Approved 3-0 


 
4. Discussion and possible action regarding drug screens for new employees  


It was decided to move this to the next Personnel meeting. 
 


5. Discussion and possible action regarding Library Children’s Services Assistant Position Description 
Discussion regarding the position description. 
Motion to send to Council for approval, Majewski, Schumacher second. Approved 3-0 







 
 
 


6. Discussion and possible action regarding Dispatcher Position Description 
Director Gillingham stated there was a small amount of wordsmithing done to the information HR 
was given for the position description. 
Motion to approve, Majewski, Schumacher second. Approved 3-0 


 
7. Future Agenda Items 


Additions or changes to future agenda items written in red: 
• Leadership Backup Plan  
• Accrued Sick Leave for Retiring Employee – Sworn Police and City Staff  
• Disciplinary Action & Compensation  
• Uniforms : 
Some discussion regarding uniforms. Majewski tasked Director Gillingham with getting a 
draft ready to present at the next Personnel Meeting. 
• Updates to Work Rules  


 
8. Motion to adjourn, Majewski, Schumacher second. All in Favor 3-0. Meeting adjourned 6:55 pm. 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted 6/30/2023 by HR Generalist Skarda 








Council Approved August 11, 2015 


 


          CITY OF STOUGHTON 


       PLANNING DEPARTMENT 


   Facilities Maintenance Specialist 


     


REPORTS TO: Planning Director                    PAY GRADE:                  FLSA: N 


 


SUMMARY OF POSITION: 


The purpose of this position is to perform building and grounds maintenance and 
repair at City office buildings.  This position requires the ability to evaluate many 


building related issues and work independently and efficiently to address them. 


 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 


Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 


Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 


• Performs maintenance and minor repair functions in City buildings; develops 
and follows a preventive maintenance schedule for buildings and equipment; 


maintains a variety of equipment including heating and air conditioning 


systems; identifies and recommends the need for major repairs. 


• Performs minor remodeling on buildings; paints offices, buildings, and other 


areas. 


• Assist Public Works with Troll Beach and Splash Pad systems. 


• Proactive approach to building maintenance and building cleanliness. 


• Prepares project specifications for contract work within City buildings and 
monitors the work of contractors; checks the quality of janitorial and building 


services performed by contractorscustodial staff; follows up as needed.  
Coordinates and monitors contracted services provided for HVAC systems, fire 


alarm/extinguisher systems, carbon monoxide detectors, electronic door 
control system, elevators, etc.  Monitors, programs, and manages digital 


heating and cooling control system for reliability and efficiency. 


• Supervise custodialn staff. 


• Maintain building maintenance supply inventory including janitorial, bathroom, 


light bulbs, etc.  Order supplies as necessary to keep adequate supply.   


• Obtain Material Safety Data Sheets for all products purchased and provide to 


the Clerk’s office for record keeping requirements. 







Council Approved August 11, 2015 


• Process invoices for department purchases for review by the Director. 


• Develop and implement a lock-out/tag-out procedure for building equipment. 


• Ability to investigate why something is not working and determine whether it 


can be repaired in-house or if specialized repair is necessary. 


 
Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an 
essential part of the purpose of this position and may also be performed by other 


unit members. 
• Answers phones; provides assistance to visitors, etc. 


 
QUALIFICATIONS: 


The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 


EDUCATION/TRAINING/CERTIFICATIONS  


• High school diploma or equivalent with vocational/technical training in 
Mechanical Maintenance or a related field and three years of building 


maintenance experience or any combination of education and experience that 
provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.   


 


NECESSARY KNOWLEDGE SKILLS AND ABILITIES 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Requires the ability to process, calculate, compute, summate, and/or tabulate 


data and/or information.  Includes the ability to perform subsequent action in 


relation to these computational operations.  


• Requires the ability to provide guidance, assistance and/or interpretation to 
others, such as co-workers and the public, on how to apply policies, 


procedures and standards to specific situations. 


• Requires the ability to utilize a variety of reference, descriptive and/or 


advisory data and information such as invoices, request forms, product 


literature, reports, timesheets, schematics, equipment manuals, procedures, 


guidelines, and non-routine correspondence. 


• Ability to communicate effectively with the supervisor, co-workers, sales 


representatives, Department Heads, contractors and the public. 


• Mechanical and repair aptitude to allow for efficient repairs without needing to 


call specialist for all activities. 


• Ability to work independently using good judgement and appropriate safety 


equipment and protocols. 


 


 


 







Council Approved August 11, 2015 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Requires the ability to apply principles of rational systems.  Ability to interpret 


instructions furnished in written, oral, diagrammatic, or schedule form.  Ability 
to exercise independent judgment to adopt or modify methods and standards 


to meet variations in assigned objective. 


• Requires the ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity 


required in situations involving the evaluation of information against 


measurable or verifiable criteria. 


• Attention to detail to maintain City Buildings.  Quickly assess process to 


remedy situations and implement plan. 


 


Physical Requirements 


• Requires the ability to operate, calibrate, tune and synchronize, and perform 
complex rapid adjustment on equipment, machinery, and tools such as a 


computer and other office machines, heating and cooling equipment, hand and 


power tools, and/or related materials used in performing essential functions. 


• Requires the ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing 


movements requiring skill and training, such as maintaining equipment. 


• Tasks involve the regular and, at times, sustained performance of moderately 


physically demanding work, typically involving some combination of climbing 
and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, 


pushing, and pulling moderately heavy objects and materials, to fifty pounds. 


• Requires the ability to recognize and identify similarities or differences 


between characteristics of colors, shapes, and sounds associated with job-


related objects, materials, and tasks. 


• Requires the regular use of ladders and stairs, and ability to work in elevated 
positions 


 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under conditions that require exposure to environmental 


factors such as temperature and noise extremes, machinery, or electrical 
currents.  This exposure may cause some discomfort and present a risk of 


injury. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Council Approved August 11, 2015 


 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER: 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 


 


All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time.  The 


employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 


 


 
 


 


Supervisor’s Signature: ____________________________Date: ____________ 


 


 


 


 


I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 


legal document.  I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 


successful performance of this job. 


 


 


Printed Name: ____________________________________ 


 


 


Signature: _______________________________________Date: ____________ 


 


  


 








 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 


FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
Capital Accountant 


REPORTS TO: Finance Director PAY GRADE: TBD FLSA: N 
 


SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The position assists in the overall operating of the Finance Department, which 
includes accounting for daily activity, capital assets and related debt, grant 
administration, assist in preparing the annual budget, and assist other departments 
in accounts receivable management. 


 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 


• Responsible for the balancing and reconciliation of assigned areas of the 
general ledger, including subsidiary ledgers maintained by other 
departments or vendors. Responsible for researching and resolving 
discrepancies. 


• Coordinates complex accounting projects and initiatives with other 
members of the Finance Department or with other departments. 


• Assist the Director of Finance/Comptroller in the creation of the annual 
five-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) in cooperation with all 
departments in the City. Coding of construction vendor invoices after 
approved for payment by the appropriate department(s). Working with 
outside audit firm with any questions related to capital assets. 


• Works the departments and Director of Finance/Comptroller to develop 
annual budget carryforward requests for applicable Capital Improvement 
Plan items. 


• Update the DebtBook software to ensure that the related database ties 
out to the general ledger in relation to outstanding debt. Ensure that 
documentation in DebtBook is current in relation to lease activity (GASB 
87) and Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (GASB 
96). 


• Performs grant administration; verifies and ensures compliance with relevant 
regulations and requirements; assists departments with periodic reports to 
granting agencies; create accrual entries for grant activity and track related 
receivables; submit required documentation to outside audit firm in relation to 
preparation of Schedule of Federal Appropriations (SEFA). 







 
• Assist the Director of Finance/Comptroller in preparing budget 


documentation to the Mayor, Committee of the Whole, other departments 
and/or public as requested. 


• Monitors budget for assigned departments and projects; determines if 
funds are available and expenditures are properly classified; researches 
and analyzes transactions to resolve budget problems. 


• Assist the Director of Finance/Comptroller in working with the various 
actuarial firms for GASB 73 and GASB 75 reporting. 


• Assist the City Treasurer with property tax collections process during 
December and January. 


 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 


 
Education/Training/Certifications 


• Bachelor’s degree in finance, accounting, public administration or business 
administration with three (3) years of progressively responsible governmental 
accounting or finance experience. Equivalent combination of education and 
experience which provides necessary knowledge, skills and abilities may be 
considered., treasury, accounting or purchasing. 


• Background check, physical/drug screen & reference checks required. 


 
Language Skills 


• Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to 
determine the relationship of the data with reference to established 
criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, 
assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. Ability to 
classify, compute and tabulate data. 


• Ability to persuade, convince, and/or train others, including the ability to 
act in a lead worker capacity. 


• Ability to advise and interpret how to apply policies, procedures and 
standards to specific situations. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as 
financial statements, tax bills, bank statements, tax payment records, 
annual budget, budget reports, job applications, daily receipts, balance 
sheets, journal entries, computer software operating manuals, tax 
collection manual, State statutes, procedures, guidelines and non-routine 
correspondence. 


• Ability to communicate orally and in writing with City staff, residents and 
vendors. 


 
Mathematical Skills 


• Ability to calculate and understand percentages, fractions, decimals, 
interest, discount, and ratios. 







 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 
• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in 


performing diversified work activities. 
• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 


situations involving the evaluation of information against sensory 
and/or judgmental criteria, as opposed to criteria, which are clearly 
measurable. 


 
Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Position 
Functions 


• Ability to operate a variety of office equipment including computer 
terminal, typewriter, telephone, fax machine, calculator/adding machine 
and photocopier. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing 
skilled movements such as rapid keyboard use. 


• Ability to exert light physical effort in sedentary to light work, but which 
may involve some lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling. 


• Ability to sustain prolonged visual concentration. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under generally safe and comfortable conditions where 


exposure to environmental factors such as repetitive computer keyboard 
use, irate individuals and intimidation may cause discomfort and poses a 
limited risk of injury. 







 
 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations 


to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 
current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 


All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. 
The employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the 
City. 


 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor 
a legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for 
the successful performance of this job. 


 


Printed Name:   
 
 


Signature:  Date:   





		QUALIFICATIONS

		Education/Training/Certifications

		Language Skills

		Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability

		Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Position Functions

		Environmental Adaptability



		EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER

		ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:






 


246 
 


 
 


Policy Procedure Manual 
 
 


Code of Ethics Policy 
1.0 Purpose 
This policy outlines the specific expectations regarding ethics that government employees 
are expected to uphold. 


2.0 Policy Details 
a) Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this section, shall have 
the meanings ascribed to them in this subsection, except where the context clearly indicates 
a different meaning: 


 
Financial interest means any interest which shall yield, directly or indirectly, a monetary or other 
material benefit to the officer or employee or to any person employing or retaining the 
services of the officer or employee. 


 
Immediate family means an individual's spouse; and an individual's relative by marriage, 
lineal descent or adoption who receives, directly or indirectly, more than one-half of his 
support from the individual or from whom the individual receives, directly or indirectly, more 
than one-half of his support. 


 
Person means any person, corporation, partnership or joint venture. 


 
(b) Penalty and sanctions. Violations of any provisions of this section may constitute a 
cause for suspension, removal from office or employment or other disciplinary action. 


 
(c) Declaration of policy. The proper operation of democratic government requires that: 


 
(1) Public officials and employees be independent, impartial and responsible to the 


people; 
 


(2) Government decisions and policy be made in proper channels of the governmental 
structure: 


 
(3) Public office not be used for personal gain; and 


 
(4) The public have confidence in the integrity of its government. 


 
In recognition of these goals, there is established a code of ethics for all City officials and 
employees, whether elected or appointed, paid or unpaid, including members of boards, 
committees and commissions of the City. The purpose of this section is to establish guidelines 
for ethical standards of conduct for all such officials and employees by setting forth those 
acts or actions that are incompatible with the best interests of the City and by directing 
disclosure by such officials and employees of private financial or other interests in matters 
affecting the City. The provisions and purpose of this section and such rules and regulations 







 


247 
 


as may be established are declared to be in the best interests of the City. 
 
(d) Responsibility for public office. Public officials and employees are agents of public 
purpose and hold offices for the benefit of the public. They are bound to uphold the 
Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of this State and carry out impartially 
the laws of the Nation, State and City of Stoughton and to observe in their official acts the 
highest standard of morality and to discharge faithfully the duties of their office regardless 
of personal consideration, recognizing that the public interest must be their prime concern. 
Their conduct in their official affairs should be above reproach so as to foster respect for all 
government. 


 
(e) Dedicated service. 


(1) All officials and employees of the City should be loyal to the objectives expressed by 
the electorate. Appointive officials and employees should adhere to the rules of work 
and performance established as the standard for their positions by the appropriate 
authority. 


 
(2) Officials and employees should not exceed their authority or breach the law or ask 
others to do so, and they should work in full cooperation with other public officials and 
employees unless prohibited from so doing by law or by officially recognized 
confidentiality of their work. 


 
(f) Fair and equal treatment. 


 
(1) Use of public property. No official or employee shall request or permit the 
unauthorized use of City-owned vehicles, equipment, materials or property for personal 
convenience or profit. 


 
(2) Obligations to citizens. No official or employee shall grant any special consideration, 
treatment or advantage to any citizen beyond that which is available to every other 
citizen. 


 
(g) Conflict of interest. 


 
(1) Financial interest prohibited. No local public official or employee may use their public 
position or office to obtain financial gain or anything of substantial value for the private 
benefit of himself or his immediate family or for an organization with which he is 
associated. This subsection does not prohibit a local public official from using the title or 
prestige of their office to obtain campaign contributions that are permitted and reported 
as required by Wis. § ch. 11. 


 


(2) Specific conflicts enumerated. 
 


a. Incompatible employment. No official or employee shall engage in or accept 
private employment or render service, for private interests, when such employment 
or service is incompatible with the proper discharge of their official duties or would 
tend to impair such official or employee's independence of judgment or action in the 
performance of their official duties, unless otherwise permitted by law and unless 
disclosure is made as provided in this section. 







 


248 
 


 
b. Disclosure of confidential information. No official or employee shall, without 
proper legal authorization, disclose confidential information concerning the 
property, government or affairs of the City, nor shall such official or employee use 
such information to advance the financial or other private interest of such official or 
employee or others. 


 
(3) Gifts and favors. No official or employee shall accept any gift, whether in the form 
of service, loan, item or promise from any person which to their knowledge is interested 
directly or indirectly in any manner whatsoever in business dealings with the City; nor shall 
any such official or employee accept any gift, favor or item of value that may tend to 
influence such official or employee in the discharge of their duties, or grant in the 
discharge of their duties any improper favor, service or item of value, except campaign 
contributions as controlled by subsection (i) of this section. Gifts received under unusual 
circumstances should be referred to the Ethics Board within ten (Ten) days for 
recommended disposition. Contracts with the City. No official or employee who in their 
capacity as such officer or employee participates in the making of a contract in which 
such officer or employee has a private pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, or performs in 
regard to that contract some function requiring the exercise of discretion on the part of 
such official or employee, shall enter into any contract with the City unless, within the 
confines of Wis. § 946.13, the contract is awarded through a process of public notice 
and competitive bidding. 


 
(4) Disclosure of interest in legislation. To the extent known, any member of the City 


Council who has a financial interest in any proposed legislation before the council shall 
disclose on the records of the Council the nature and extent of such interest. Any other 
official or employee who has a financial or personal interest in any proposed legislative 
action of the Council and who participates in discussion with or gives official opinions or 
recommendations to the Council shall disclose on the records of the Council the nature 
and extent of such interest. 


 
(h) Disclosure of certain financial interests. 


 
(1) All elected and appointed officials and employees as directed by the City Council 
shall file an initial statement of economic interests and amend such statement if 
substantial changes have occurred in economic interests as defined and limited to 
Subsection (h)(3) of this section, within a time period specified by the ethics board. 
 
(2) If a person must make a disclosure as provided in subsection (h) (1) of this section, 
within seven ((Seven) days after such person becomes a candidate for any elective City 
office, prior to appointment to such office such person shall file a statement of economic 
interests or a statement as provided in Subsection (h) (4) of this section with the Ethics 
Board. 


 
(3) A person filing any statement of economic interests under this section shall file the 
statement on a form prescribed by the Ethics Board and shall supply the following 
information to the Ethics Board: a description of all parcels of real estate within the City 
and adjoining towns or villages in which the person or spouse owns any interest, 







 


249 
 


including an option to purchase, if such property is to be considered for rezoning or 
purchase, if such property is to be considered for rezoning or purchase by an entity of 
government, but exempting homestead property. All candidates for elective and 
appointive office required to file under this section shall identify any and all interests of 
more than 2 (Two)percent or 57,500.00 (Fifty Thousand Five Hundred), whichever is lesser, 
they or their spouse has in any business organization, either as an owner, part owner, 
partner, silent partner or lender. The statement shall include a listing of all corporations 
or businesses on which the person or spouse serves as a Director or on a consultation 
basis. 


 
(4) Any candidate, elected, or appointed official or employee who feels their standards 
of privacy would be compromised by a statement of economic interests may decline to 
offer such a statement. In lieu thereof, they shall initially file a statement with the Ethics 
Board of their knowledge and awareness of the requirements to disclose interest in 
legislation required under Subsection (g)(4) of this section. 


 
(i) Campaign contributions. Campaign contributions shall be reported by all candidates 
for City office in strict conformity with the provisions of statute. Any campaign contribution 
tendered to or accepted by a candidate subsequent to the final statutory report shall be 
reported to the Clerk, who shall forward a copy of such report to the Ethics Board. 


 
(j) Ethics board. 


 
1. There is created an Ethics Board to consist of 5 (Five) members as follows: one 


alderperson as appointed by the Mayor, one City officer or employee and 3 (Three) 
citizen members all appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the City Council. 
Terms of office shall be 3 (Three) years. The Ethics Board shall elect its own chair and 
vice-chair, and the City Attorney shall furnish the board whatever legal assistance 
is necessary to carry out its function. If any member of the Ethics Board petitions 
the board for a hearing and advice regarding their own conduct, such member 
shall be mandatorily excepted from sitting in their own case and the City Attorney 
shall be substituted therefore. The Ethics Board may make recommendations to 
the City Council with respect to amendments to this section. 
 


2. Upon the verified complaint of any person alleging facts which, if true, would 
constitute improper conduct under the provisions of this section, the Ethics Board 
shall first conduct a private and confidential inquiry into the merits of the complaint. 
Upon a finding of probable misconduct by a majority of the Ethics Board, the Ethics 
Board shall conduct a public hearing in accordance with all common law 
requirements of due process and, in written findings of fact and conclusions based 
thereon, make a determination concerning the propriety of the conduct of the 
subject official or employee. If the Ethics Board finds probable cause exists for 
action against an employee based on a violation of this section, it shall refer the 
matter for appropriate action to the Council or District Attorney. In making such 
referral, the Ethics Board shall supply the Council or District Attorney with a written 
statement of their determination. 


 
3. The Ethics Board shall be required to only report probable cause for misconduct 







 


250 
 


when three- fourths of the members of the Ethics Board present and voting vote to 
do so. 


 
(k) Applicability. When an official or employee has doubt as to the applicability of a 
provision of this section, such official or employee shall apply to the Ethics Board for an 
advisory opinion. The official or employee shall have the opportunity to present their 
interpretation of the facts at issue and of the applicability of provisions of this section before 
such advisory decision is made. This section shall be operative in all instances covered by its 
provisions except when superseded by an applicable statutory provision and statutory action 
is mandatory, or when the application of a statutory provision is discretionary but determined 
by the Ethics Board to be more appropriate or desirable. 


 
(Code 1986, § 1.12) 


3.0 Procedures 


4.0 Exhibits / Appendices / Forms 


5.0 Council Approved 
August 24, 2021 









